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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of CL Media Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of CL Media Private Limited("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the Ind AS financial statements
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as "Ind AS Financial Statements") .

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind
AS"), of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its profit including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules there under
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules
issued there under. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
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effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Ind AS financial statements. As part of an
audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a goingconcern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

L
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure 1", a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In ouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued there under;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give our
separate report in "Annexure 2";

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act;
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h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our Information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts.
Hence, the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise; and

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W/W100048

Raj Kumar Agarwal

Partner

Membership No. 074715

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019

NEW DELHI

s^ACCO^
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' in the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL
Media Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019]

(i)
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) During the year, the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the
management and as informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The company does not have any immovable property. Accordingly paragraph 3{i)(c) of
the order is not applicable to the company.

(ii) The inventory {excluding stock lying with third parties) has been physically verified by the
management during the year. In respect of stock lying with third parties, these have been
confirmed by them. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. As
informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification carried out
during the year.

(hi) As informed, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms. Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 {iii)(a), 3 (iii){b) and 3 (iii)(c) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) Based on information and explanation given to us, there are no loans, investment,
guarantees and securities. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the rules framed there under.

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for any of the
products of the Company under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules
framed there under.

(vii)
(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities,

undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and any other material statutory
dues applicable to it, however, there have been slight delay in few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales
tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, excise duty,
cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues with
respect to income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax,
customs duty, excise duty, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
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(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institution(s), bank(s), government(s) or
dues to debenture holder(s).

(ix) The Company has neither raised money by way of public issue offer nor has obtained any
term loans. Therefore, paragraph 3(ix)of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(X) During the course of our examination of the booksand records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
fraud by the Companyor any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the
management.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, managerial remuneration has
been paid in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xll) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xiii) According to the Information and explanation given to us, all transactions entered into by
the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Act,
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Therefore, paragraph
3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(XV) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions vdth directors or persons connected with him during the
year.

(xvi) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under section45-IAof the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm ftegisjtradon No. 103523W / W100048

Raj Kumar Agarwal

Partner

Membership No. 0

Place: A/-c*o

Date:

DELHI

fbACCO
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in
the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL Media Private Limited
on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of CL
Media Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness.
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Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

%
^ACCO'̂
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on
the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAI.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

Raj Kumar Agarwal

Partner

Membership No.074715

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019

WTI

NEW DELHI

OacCO'̂
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CL Media Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

{All amounts are Rupees in lacs unless otherwise stotedi

As at As at

Note March 31. 2019 March 31, 2018

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 3 26.34 15.45

Other Intangible Assets 4 75.41 82.14

Intangible assets under development 17.50

Deferred tax assets (net) 5 607.44 571.20

Non current (tax) assets (net) 6 120.38 120.38

Other non current assets 7 0.09

Total non current assets 829.57 806.76

Current assets

Inventories 8 78.02 36.65

Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 9 6.584.58 5,877.95

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 64.59 28.72

(iii) Bank balances other than (1i) above

liv) Loans 11 1.70

IV) Other financial assets 12 20.13 34,13

Other current assets 13 11.67 58.37

Total current assets 6,760.69 6,035.82
Total 7,590.26 6,842.58

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Equity share capital 14 1.00 1.00

Other equity 15 5,371.16 4,593.57

5,372.16 4,594.57
Non-current llabflltles

Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 16 8.08

Provisions 17 61.74 48.01

61.74 56.09

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

(!) Borrowings 18 45.07

(II) Irade payables 19

- to micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note v) 81.29

- to other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,515.49 1,774.78
(iii) other financial liabilities 20 100.65 109.12

Other current liabilities 21 133.54 56.60

Provisions 22 0.99 0.75

Current tax liabilities (net) 23 324.40 205.60

Total current liabilities 2,156.36 2,191.92

Total liabilities 2,218.10 2,248.01

Total equity and liabilities 7,590.26 6,842.58

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For Haribhakli & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration No. 103523W/W100048

Raj Kumar Agarwal

Partner

Membership No.;074715

/'•0aterW79>:?©

•t--A'DELHI

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

CL Media Private Limited

Satya Narayanan .R

Director

DIN; 00307326

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29. 2019

NIkhil AAahajan

Director

DIN; 00033404

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019



CL Media Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts ore Rupees in lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue

Revenue from operations 24 4.546.97 4,033.23
Other income 25 50.89 50.84
Total revenue (1) 4,597.86 4,084.07

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 26 1,172.61 1.138.67
Changesin inventoryof finished goodsand work-in-progress 27 (6.62) 72.48
Employee benefit expenses 28 691.38 749.50
Finance costs 29 13.38 47.71
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 30 27.93 24.63
Other expenses 31 1,583.55 1.230.74
Total expenses (II) 3,482.23 3,263.73
Profit before tax (l)-(ll) 1,115.63 820.34

Less: Tax expense for the year

• Current tax 373.72 248.34
• Deferred tax 43 (36.10) (32.02)

337.62 216.32
Profit after tax 778.01 604.02

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified Subsequently to statement of profit or loss
- Remeasurementof post employment benefit obligations (0.52) 3.47
- income tax related to above item 0.14 (0.97)

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of income tax) (0.38) 2.50

Total comprehensive income for the year 777.63 606.53

Earnings per equity share (in Rs.):
Nominal value of Rs. 10 each (Previous year Rs. 10 each)

-ilasic & Diluted earning per share 32 7,780.13 6.040.23

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For Haribhaktl a Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration No. 103523W/W10004fi

Raj KGinarAgarwal/

Partner ; l NHIV DELHI,
Membership No.tQT'frlS

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

CL Media Private Limited

Satya Narayanan .R

Director

DIN: 00307326

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019

Nfkhil Mahajan

Director

DIN: 00033404

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019



CL Media Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31. 2019

Mil amounts ore i?upee5 in lacs unless otherwise sfotedj

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax

Adjustments for:

depreciation and amortisation

8ad debts written off

Finance cost (excluding interest on delayed payment of income tax)

Amortisation of loan processing fee

Interest on delayed payment of income tax and statutory dues

Liabilities no longer required written back

Interest income

Provision for expected credit loss

Other comprehensive income

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in r^erating assets;
Non- current financial asset-loans

inventories

Trade receivables

Current financial asset-loans

Other current financial assets

Other Current Assets

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Non-current provisions

Trade payables

Other current financial liabilities

Other current liabilities

Current provisions

Cash generated from operations

Taxes and interest thereon paid

Net cash used in operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities:

Capital expenditure on fixed assets (iiKluding capital work in progress)

Interest income received

Investment made in fixed deposits

Prqce^^Troin maturity of fixed deposits
^•/Neto^hliised inlnvesting activities

(A)

(B)

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

1,115.63 820.34

27.93 24.63

104.80 76.67

9.85 42.25

• 1.62

3.53 3.84

(23.30) (7.44)

(3.00) (1.96)

38.20 124.31

(0.52) 3.47

1,273.12 1,087.73

0.25

(41.37) 79.04

(849.63) (314.01)

(1.70) 0.70

14.00 (24.74)

46.71 8.90

13.73 6.84

(154.71) 190.99

32.79 (16.39)

76.94 36.72

0.24 0.09

410.12 1,058.12

(258.45) (300.55)

151.67 757.57

(14.77) (18.63)

3.00 1.96

(240.00)

240.00

(11.77) (16.67)

Continued on next page....



CL Media Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Allamounts are Rupeesin lacs unless otherwise stated)

....Continued from previous page

Cash Flow from financing activities;

Net decrease in Long term borrowings from banks
Repayment to short-term borrowings from related party
Interest and other borrowings costs paid
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities

(47.24) (89.87
(45.07) (554.81

(11.72) (138.20

(C) (104.03 (782.88)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+6+C) 35.87 (41.98)

Cash and cash equivalents

•At beginning of the year
Add: Deposits with maturity less than 3 months from balance sheet date
-At end of the year

28.72 70.70

64.59 28.72

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Balances with banks:

- on current accounts

Cash on hand
64.59 28.59

0.13

Add:

Fixed deposits shown under other Cash and bank balances

- Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months from the

64.59 28.72

Total cash and bank balances at end of the year
64.59 28.72

Notes:

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer rrote 10>
Balances with banks

on current accounts

- cash on hand
64.59 28.59

0.13

64.59 28.72

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities and financial assets arising from financing activities.

Particulars March 31, 2018 Cash flows Non cash changes
Fair value

changes

March 31, 2019

Short-term borrowings 45.07 (45.07)
Long term borrowings 55.82 (47.24) 8.58

Particulars March 31, 2017 Cash flows Non cash changes

Fair value

changes

March 31, 2018

Short-term borrowings 599.88 (554.81) 45.07
Long term borrowings 144.07 (89.87) 1.62 55.82

iii. The cash flowstatement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in IndAS 7 CashFlowStatements,
fv. Notes to the Ffnancials Statements form an integral part of the CashFlowStatement.
V. Pursuant totherequirements ofSection 135 oftheAct, theCompany has incurred fts. 38.26 lacs amount on CSR activities during theyear ended March 31, 2019.

As per our report of even date.

For Haribhaktl 6 Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

Raj Kumar Agarv^a^;..:i^.
Partner

Membership No.: 074715

Place: New Delhi ^ "
Date : May 29, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

CL Media Private Limited

Satya Narayanan .R

Director

DIN: 00307326

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019

Nikhil Mahajan
Director

DIN: 00033404

Place: New Delhi

Date : May 29. 2019



CL Media Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2019
lAUamounts are Rupees in Iocs unless otherwise statedj

A. Equity Share capital

Balance as at April 01, 2017 1.00

Change in equity share capital during 2017-18
Balance as at March 31, 2018 1.00

Change in equity share capital during 2018-19

Balance as at March 31, 2019 1.00

B. Other Equity

Particulars Attributable to owners of the company

Reserves & Surplus Remeasurement of

defined benefit plans
Total attributable to to

owners of the companyGeneral reserve Retained Earnirtgs

Balance as at April 1, 2017
- 3,984.24 2.81 3,987.05

Profit for the year 604.02 604.02
Other comprehensive Income

- 2.50 2.50

Total Comprehensive Income 604.02 2.50 606.52

Balance as at March 31, 2018 4,588.26 5.31 4,593.57
Profit for Che year 777.97 777.97

Other comprehensive Income
- (0.38) (0.38)

Total Comprehensive Income 777.97 (0.38) 777.59

Balance as at March 31, 2019 5,366.24 4.92 5,371.16

For Haribhakti h Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration No. 103523W/W100048

Raj Kumar Aga

Partner

Membership No.;074715

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

CL Media Private Limited

Satya Narayanan .R

Director

DIN: 00307326

Ptace: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019

Nikhil Mahajan

Director

DIN: 00033404

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29. 2019
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Notes to the Financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2019

Reporting Entity

CL Media Private Limited ("the Company") was Incorporated on February 01, 2008 with the object of
publishing educational content and books and providing advertising services on any form of media. The
Company is a 100% subsidiary of CL Educate Limited with all equity shares held through nominee
shareholders.

The accompanying financial statements reflect the results of the activities undertaken by the Company
during the year period April 01, 2018 to March 31, 2019.

1. Basis of Preparation.

(i) Statement of Compliance:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133of Companies Act,
2013, (the 'Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 29, 2019

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are included
in Note 2. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(ii) Current and Non-Current Classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.
Based on the above criteria, the Company has ascertained its accounting cycle as twelve months for the
purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

(Hi) Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Company's functional
currency. Allamounts have been rounded-off to nearest lacs, unless otherwise stated.

(iv) Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared wi the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of
defined benefit obligations

(v) Use of Estimates and Judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income

^^nd expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

^Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisjons^p accounting estimates
11 -w A/fj are^cognized prospectively.
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Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following Notes:

• Note no 41: classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are

held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the period ending March 31, 2019 is included in the following Notes:

• Note no 3: measurement of useful lives and residual values to property, plant and equipment;

• Note no 4: measurement of useful lives of intangible assets;

• Note no 33: recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the

likelihood and magnitude of outflow of resources;

• Note no 38: measurement of defined benefit obligations and plan assets: key actuarial assumptions;

• Note no 41: impairment of financial assets.

• Note no 41: fair value measurement of financial instruments including expected credit losses on

financial assets.

• Note no 43: recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax

losses carried forward can be used

(vi) Measurement of Fair Value

A number of accounting policy and disclosures require measurement of fair value for both financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fairvalue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active marketsfor identical assets or liabilities

/,
—Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

^measurement is directly or indirectly observable<1^

-V /

' Nc.'.
f; y
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Notes to the Financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2019

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilitlK on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

2. Significant accounting policies

(i) Revenue

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS "V'̂ hich establishe^^
for determininc v^hether, how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Standard requires
apportioning revenue earned from contracts to individual promises, or performance obligations, o" ^
S^bne seUing price basis, using afive-step model. Ind AS 115 replaces nd AS 18 Rf'nd
Construction Contract. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the
of initiallv aoDlvinc this standard is recognized at the date of initial application {i.e. April 1» 2018) and the
corliparatwe^ stateme^ of profit and loss is not restated -i.e. the comparative information
continues to be reported under Ind AS 18.

Refer note 2(i) - Significant accounting policies - Revenue recognition in the Annual report of the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2018, for the revenue recognition policy as per Ind AS 18.

The company derives its revenue primarily from Sale of Books and Advertising Business.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by industry verticals, geography and
nature of services. Entire revenue is generated within Indian geographical boundaries.

Sale of Books & Scrap

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized at the point of time upon transfer of control of proved
goods to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in
exchange for those goods i.e. when it is probable that the entity will receive the economic benefits
associated with the transaction and the related revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recogmz^ at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the contracted price, net of a y
taxes/duties and discounts considering the impact ofvariable consideration.

Variable Consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, estimates the amount of consideration to
which itwill be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to a customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly Probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The Cornpany
recognizes changes in the estimated amount of variable consideration in the period in which change
occurs. Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers with volume rebates and right to returns
which give rise to variable consideration.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the
discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified
in the contract with the customer.

1^1

Advertisement Income

Revenue from advertising income is recognized over the period of timeHy measuring progress towards
satisfaction of performance obligation for the services rendered as per the terms of the agreement.
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The billing schedules agreed v^ith customers include periodic performance-based payments and / or
milestone-based progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

Other Operating Income

Content Development Income

Income from content development is recognized at a point in time when the performance obligation is
satisfied, as specified in the agreement entered or any amendments thereto.

Revenue from related parties is recognized based on transaction price which is at arm's length.

Contract Balances

Trade receivables

Areceivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.
only the passage of time is required beforepayment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting
policiesof financial assets in section vii(iv) in Financial instruments.

Contract Liabilities (Unearned Revenue)

Acontract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Amounts billed and
received or recoverable prior to the reporting date for services and such services or part of such services
are to be performed after the reporting date are recorded as contract liabilities as per the provisions of
the Ind AS-115 and shown in other current liabilities.

Contract Assets ^Unbilled Revenue)

Contract Assets is an entity's right to consideration in exchange of goods or service that the entity has
transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the passage of time.
This is recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are
classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to
receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition: -

• The performance obligation is satisfied at point of time upon delivery of the books and study
material. Some contracts provide customers with a right of return and volume rebates which give rise
to variable consideration subject to constraint. Accordingly, refund liability towards expected return
has been created.

• At the time of entering into the agreement / raising an invoice, performance obligations in the
contract are identified. The Company delivers services as per the tenure and terms & condition of
the contract. Contracts are of differing natures and sometimes have one specific performance
obligation, and on other occasions have multiple performance obligations. Contract Liability has been
created towards unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations.

• Contract fulfilment costs are generally expensed as incurred except for certain Incentive costs which
meet the criteria for deferred. Such costs are expensed over the contractual period or useful life of
'contractwhichever is less. The assessment of these criteria requires the application of judgement, in
^particular when considering if costs generate or enhance resources to be used to satisfy future
performance obligations and whether costs are expected to be recovered.
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(ti) Recognition of Interest Income

Interest Income

Interest income on time deposits is recognized using the effective interest method.

The 'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

(iii) Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost net of recoverable taxes(wherever
applicable), which includes capitalised borrowing costs less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
Impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, if any, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or losson disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.

Subsequent Exoenditure

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only ifit is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditurewill flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting
year in which they are incurred.

Deoreciation Methods. Estimated Useful Lives and Residual Values

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
value over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is recognized in the statement
of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative
periods areas under and the same are equal to lives specified asperschedule II ofthe Act.

'7 :^>?^he useful lives of the assets are as under:
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Tangible Assets; Useful Lives (in years)

Furniture and Fixtures 10

Plant & Machinery 15

Office Equipment 5
Computer Equipment 3
Printing Negative Films 3

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of
useful lives as given above best represent the period overwhich management expects to use these assets.
Depreciation onaddition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the
assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sold/discarded property, plant and equipment is
provided for up to the date of sale, deletion or discard of property, plant and equipments the case may
be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and
changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

(iv) Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefit attributable to the
asset will flow to the company and where its cost can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises the purchase price
and any cost attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss as incurred.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-line method and is included in depreciation and amortisation in the statement of profit and
loss.

The useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible assets: Useful lives (inyears)
License Fees 10

Software 5
Content/Material Development 5

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and
changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

Losses arising from the retirement of and gain or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of asset and
r^ognized as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss. ^

lii^pairment of Non-Financial Assets

rr. /•

A'
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The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of a CGU or an individual assets the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss
recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on
a pro rata basis.

After impairment, depreciation/amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over
its remaining useful life.

(vi) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(vii) Financial Instruments

i. Recognition and Initial Measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue, except for an item recognized at fair value through profit
and loss. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss are expense in
the statement of profit and loss.

11. Classification and Subsequent Measurement

Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
.• amortised cost;

• Fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), or ^
, lA ^air value through profit and loss (FVTPL) / r \
llo'/)
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The classification depends on entity's business model for managing financial assets & the contractual
terms of the cash flow.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principalamount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI - equity
investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial Assets: Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income
and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Financial Assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest income, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Debts Investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under
the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairmentare recognized in profit
or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated
in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity Investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or

/S/ loss. "
i-v-' Nt"W
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Financial Uabiiities: Classification, Subsequent Measurement and Gain and Losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTRL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Hi. Offsetting

Financial assets and monetary liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

iv. Derecognition

Financial Assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognized.

Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.

V. Impairment of Financial instruments:

The company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on;

Financial assets measured at amortised cost and;
Financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt instruments

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. Afinancial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

? Evidence that a financial asset iscredit- impaired includes the following observable data:

iVfc- 2^- ' significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
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• a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for agreed credit period;
• the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company v/ould not

consider otherwise;

• It is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
• the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Expected Credit Loss:

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the meiximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
agreed credit period.

The Company considersa financial asset to be in default when:

• the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

• the financial asset is past dueand not recovered within agreed credit period.

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between thecash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet.

Write-Off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that

-thedebtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
'̂ ^ithe amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject

to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amountsi^^ue..
/;•



CL Media Private Limited

Notes to the Financial statements for the period ended AAarch 31, 2019

(viii) Leases:

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease.

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of an
arrangement at inception date. Whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement

At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for other
elements based on their relative fair values.

4

Where the Companv is lessee

Finance Lease

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments
are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial
direct costs of lease are capitalised.

Aleased asset isdepreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful lifeof the asset as determined bythe
management or the useful life envisaged in Schedule II to the Act, whichever is lower. However, if there is
no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, the
capitalised asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the
asset, the lease term and the useful life envisaged in Schedule II to the Act.

Operating Lease

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased item, are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are generally
recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
such payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. Lease incentives received are recognized as an integral part
of the total lease expense over the term of the lease.

Where the Companv is the lessor

Finance Lease

Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as finance leases. Assets given under finance lease are recognized as a receivable at an amount
equal to the net investment in the lease. After initial recognition, the Company apportions lease rentals
between the principal repayment and interest income so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of return

=r0ftthe net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease. The interest income is recognized in
statement ofprofit and loss. Initial direct costs are included in the initial measurement ofthe finance

lease receivable and reduces the amount of income recognized over the l^e term.
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Operating Lease

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in property, plant
and equipment. Lease incomeon an operating lease is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless such payments are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation.

(ix) Inventories

Raw materials, packaging materials and stores and spare parts are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes purchase price (excluding those subsequently recoverable by the enterprise
from the concerned revenue authorities), freight inwards and other expenditure incurred in bringing such
inventories to their present location and condition. In determining the cost, first in first out method is
used.

Work in progress, manufactured finished goods and traded goods are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of work in progress and manufactured finished goods is determined on the weighted
average basis and comprises direct material, cost ofconversion and other costs incurred in bringing these
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is madeon an item byitem basis.

(x) Employee Benefits

Short Term Emolovee Benefits:

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses off as
the related services are provided. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus etc are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which the employee renders the related service. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligation in the balance sheet.

Long Term Emolovee Benefits

DefinedContribution Plan: Provident Fund

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a
defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at
a predetermined rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions
Act, 1952. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of
India. The Company has no further obligation under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. Obligations
forcontribution to defined contribution plan are recognized as an employee benefit expenses in statement
of profit and loss in the period during which the related services are rendered by the employees.

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity

Adefined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

•'' \The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for lump sum
payments to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in
,,^n amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon

V-
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completion of five years of service. Benefits payable to eligible employees of the company with respect to
gratuity is accounted for basedon an actuarialvaluation as at the balancesheet date.

The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for
past service cost and fair value of plan assets as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations
are to be settled. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benefit
obligation or change in return of the plan assets is recognized as an income or expense in the other
comprehensive income. The Company's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for
the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning
of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in
the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan iscurtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service ('past service cost' or 'past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on
the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

The Plan assets of the Company are managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India through a trust
managed by the Company in terms of an insurance policy taken on fund obligations with respect to its
gratuity plan.

Other Lons-Term Benefits: Compensated Absences

Benefits under the Company's compensated absences scheme constitute other employee benefits. The
liability in respect of compensated absences is provided based on an actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method done by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gain
and losses are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

(xi) Income Tax

Income tcoc comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except
to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognized directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to setoff
the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

,./$-^Def^rred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the correspon^g^^am.ounts used for taxation purposes.'"•I

\ Nt
c\
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Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recognized for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the
transaction;

taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future
taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets - unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each
reporting date and are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be real.

Minimum Alternate Tax

Minimum Alternative Tax ('MAT') credit entitlement under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is
recognized as a deferred tax asset when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it in
the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, will flow to the Company and the asset can be
measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement is set off to the extent allowed in the year in which the
Company becomes liableto pay income taxes at the enacted tax rates. A^AT credit entitlement is reviewed
at each reporting date and is recognized to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
probability of recognition of AAAT credit entitlement.

(xii) Contingent Liability, Contingent Asset and Provisions

Contingent Liability

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of oneor more uncertain future events notwholly within the
control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent Assets

// S^^ontingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
/ by^he occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
'•iire Company.
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Provisions

The Companycreates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably
requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized
as finance cost.

(xiii) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

(xiv) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The
weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events such as
bonus issue, share split or consolidation of shares.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed
converted into equity shares as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later
date.

(xv) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company's Management to allocate
resources to the segments and assess their performance.

Segment Earnings Before Interest, Tax and Depreciation ('EBITDA') is used to measure performance as
management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain
segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries. Inter-segment pricing is
determined on an arm's length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further:

1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the
segment.

Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining
-;:^^@^ ^he segment result. Expenses which relate to the Company as awhole and not allocable to segments

' W "/are included under unallocable expenditure.
^ >
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3. Income v/hich relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in
unallocable income.

4. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallocable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as a
whole and not allocable to any segment.

-The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Company's 'Chief Operating Decision Maker' or 'CODM' within
<<C\^e:Drieaning of Ind AS 108. Refer Note37for segment information.

•! NEJdelHI
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Notesto the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amountsare Rupees In lacs unlessotherwise stated)

3. Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Plant and

Machinery
Furniture and

Fixtures
Office Equipments Computers

Printing Negative
Films

Total

Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying amount)
Balance as at April 1, 2017
Additions for the year

Disposals for the year
Ind AS remeasurements

15.86 0.09 0.10 5.35

.

21.40

Balance as at March 31, 2018 15.86 0.09 0.10 5.35 . 21.40
Balance as at April 1,2018

Additions for the year
Disposalsfor the year

15.86 0.09 0.10 5.35

5.57 9.44

21.40

15.01

balance as at March 31, 2019 15.86 0.09 0.10 10.92 9.44 36.41
Balance at April 1, 2017

Depreciation for the year

Impairment loss

Disposals for the year

1.07

1.24

0.03

0.03

1.91

1.67

.

3.01

2.94

Balance as at March 31, 2018 2.31 0.06 3.58 .

5.95
Accumulated depredation and impainnent losses
Balance at April 1, 2018

Depreciation for the year
Disposals for the year

2.31

1.24

0.06

0.02

3.58

2.16 0.70

5.95

4.12

Balance as at March 31, 2019 3.55 0.08 5.74 0.70 10.07

Carrying amount (net)

A$atAtarch31,2018 13.55 0.03 0.10 1.77 .

15.45
As at March 31, 2019 12.31 1 0.01 0.10 5.18 8.74 26.34

Notes:

I. There are noimpairment losses recognised during the year.
ti. There areno exchar^e differences adjusted In property, plant &equipment.
til. Refer n^ote 30 for depreciation.

W. Previousjy,~-^pany use to expense off printing negative films used In puWishlng books astudy materials. But from October-IS onwards, Company has adopted policy of
, d^reciatlng ov«- a estimated useful life of3years over straight-line method

, -! •



CL Media Private Liinlted

Notes to the financial statementsfor the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts are Rupees In lacsunless othervdse stated)

4. Intangible assets

Particulars Computer License fees Content/Material Total

Software Refer Note (i) Development
Refer Note (li)

Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying amount)
Balance as at April 1, 2017 1.70 89.99 30.24 121.93
Additions for the year

1.14 1.14
Disposals for the year

. .

Balance as at March 31, 2018 1.70 89.99 31.38 123.07
Balance as at April 1, 2018 1.70 69.99 31.38 123.07
Additions for the year

. 17.08 17.08
Disposals for the year

. -

Balance as at March 31, 2019 1.70 89.99 48.46 140.15
Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at April 1, 2017 0.26 15.03 3.95 19.24
Amortisation for the year 0.34 15.03 6.32 21.69
Disposals for the year

- - .

Balance as at March 31, 2018 0.60 30.06 10.27 40.93
Balance as at April 1, 2018 0.60 30.06 10.27 40.93
Amortisation for the year 0.34 15.01 8.46 23.81
Disposals for the year

. •

Balance as at March 31, 2019 0.94 45.07 18.73 64.74

Carrying amount (net)
As at March 31, 2018 1.10 59.93 21.11 82.14
As at March 31, 2019 0.76 44.92 29.73 75.41

Note:

License fee represent the arrangement between author and publisher touse Its content in publication of books and titles that useful for different examination. Amortisation
iscalculated towrite off thecost ofcontent over their estimated useful life (range 1to 10 years) using thestraight-line method.

Content Is core to publishing the test preparation books and other competitive exam books and Is an intellectual property. It Includes content In form of books, questions
and solutions and analysis of test papers. Amortisation Is calculated to write off the cost of caitent over their estimated useful life (range 1to5years) using the straight-
line method.

Thereare no exchange differences adjusted In Intangible assets.
The company has not carried out any revaluation ofIntangible assets for theyear ended March 31, 2019 and year ended March 31, 2018.
Refer note 30 for amortisation.

Details of internally generated intangible assets are as below:

Particulars

Content/Material

Development
Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying amount)
Balance as at April 1, 2017 30.24

Additions for the year 1.14

Disposals for the year
-

Balance as at March 31, 2018 31.38

Balance as at April 1, 2018 31.38

Additions for the year 17.08

Disposals for the year
.

Balance as at March 31, 2019 48.46

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at April 1, 2017 3.95

Amortisation for the year 6.32

Disposals for the year
Balance as at March 31, 2018 10.27

Balance as at April 1, 2018 10.27

Amortisation for the year 8.46

Disposals for the year
Balance as at March 31, 2019 18.73

Carrying amount (net)

As at March 31, 2018 21.11

As atAAarch 31, 2019 29.73 j
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5. Deferred tax liabilities/ assets

Net deferred tax assets (Refer rrote 43)

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

607.44 571.20

607.44 571.20

In assessing the reallsablllty ofdeferred taxassets, management considers whether it is reasonable, thatsome portion, or ail, of the deferred tax
assets will berealised. The ultimate realisation ofdeferred taxassets isdependent upon thegeneration offuture taxable income during theyear In
which tt»e temporary differences become deductible.

6. Non current (tax) assets

As at

March 31, 2019
As at

March 31, 2018
Advance Income tax and tax deducted at source (net of provision of Rs. 598.23lacs (March 31, 2018:
Rs. 598.23 lacs)

120.38 120.38

120.38 120.38

7. Other non cirrent assets

As at

March 31, 2019
As at

March 31, 2018
Capital advances 0.09

0.09

8. Inventories

As at

March 31. 2019

As at

March 31, 2018
Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value

Raw materials

Finished goods
Work in progress
Right to return assets (Refer note 1v)

19.61 35.09

1.49 1.56

6.69 .

50.23 .

78.02 36.65

Note:-

Allinventories categories represent text books.

includes rawmaterials lying with third parties March 31, 2019:Rs. 19.61 lacs,March 31,2018: Rs. 35.09lacs.
Includes vrork-in-progress lying withthirdpartiesMarch 31, 2019: Rs. 6.69lacs,March 31, 2018: Rs. Nil.
Forexplanation regardingRightto return assets, (Refernote 26(if))

9. Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Considered good- Secured

Considered good- Unsecured

Credit Impaired

Less: Allowancefor Credit impairment

Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as below:

Total trade receivables from related parties (Refer note v)

Notes:

i. The Company has measured Expected Credit Loss oftrade receivable based onsimplified approach asper Ind AS 109 Tinandal Instruments" exe^
bulk customer and other. (Refer note no 41).

It. Forexplanation on the Company credit riskmanagementprocess(Refer Noteno. 41).
lit. Tradereceivables are non interestbearing and are normally received in rtormal operatir^cycle.
iv. No Trade or other receivable are due from directoror other officer of the Company and fltmsor private companies In which any director Is a

partner»i^director or a member either jointly or severally with other persons except as stated above.
For terni|~^arMt.cortdition of trade receivable owing from related parties (Refernote 39).

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

6,584.58 5,877.95

232.77 194.57

6,817.35 6,072.52

232.77 194.57

6,584.58 5,877.95

5,415.78 4,816.45

5.415.78 4,816.45
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10. Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with bai4(s

- on current accounts

- cash on hand

Notes:

I. Forexplanation on the Company risk management process(Refer note 41)

II. Current financial asset-loans

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Security deposits
Loan to Employee

Notes;

I. Forexplanation on the Company risk management process (Refer note41)

12. Other current flnartdal assets

Other receivable

Ofthe above, other recelvabiesfrom related parties are as below:

Totalother receivables fromrelated parties (Refernote 39)

Notes:

1. Forexplanation onthe Company risk management process (Refer note41)

13. Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Advance to suppliers

Prepaid expenses
Coods & Services tax credit receivable

Deferred Contract Cost*

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

64.59 28.59

• 0.13

64.59 28.72

As at As at

March 31,2019 AAarch 31, ^18

0.50

1.20

1.70

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

20.13 34.13

20.13 34.13

15.59 29.16

15.59 29.16

As at

March 31, 2019
As at

Atorch 31, 2018

7.71 13.18

- 3.92

- 41.27

3.96

11.67 58.37

Is the upfront cost (employees Incentives) required to bring a contractthat willbe amortized overthe termsofcontract.
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14. Equity share capital

a. TheCompany hasonly oneclass ofsharecapiul having a parvalue ofRs. 10pershare, referred to herein as equity shares.

Authorised Shares

10,000 (March 31,2018:10,000) equitysharesof Rs. 10each fully paidup

Issued, subscribed artd fully paid-up shares
10,000 (AAarch 31,2018: 10,000) equitysharesof Rs. 10each fully paidup

b. Reconciliation oftheshares outstandir^ at the beginning andat the endofthe reportir^ period.

Equity Shares

As at

March 31, 2019
As at

March 31.2018

1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00

Sharesoutstanding at the beginning of the year
Shares outstanding at the end of the year

Year ended

March 31, 2019
Year ended

March 31, 2018

Number Amount Number Amount

10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

•During the year, the company hasneitherissued norbought backanyshares

c. Terms/rights attached to equity share

Voting

Eachholderof equityshares is entitled to one vote per share held.

Dividends

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors Is subject toapproval of the shareholders In
ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case where interim dividend is distributed. The Company has not distributed any dividend in the current
year and previous year.

Liquidation

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts, ifany. Such distribution amounts will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

d. Shares held by holding/ultimate holdlr^ companyand/ or their subsidiaries/associates

Nature of

Relationship
As at March 31, 2019 AsatMarchSI, 2018

Number %of Holding Number % of Holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
held by CL Educate Limited
(Holding Company)

HoldingCompany 10,000 100.00% 10,000 100.00%

the shares.

e. DeUil ofshareholders holdii^morethan 5% ofequityshareof the Company

Name of shareholder

Equityshares of Rs.10 each fullypaid up held by :•
-Nikhil Mahajan (as nomineeof CLEducate Limited)
•SatyaNarayanan R(as nomineeof CL EducateLimited)

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Holding in %of total equity

numbers shares
Holdir^in X of total equity

numbers shares

5,000 50%

5,000 50%

5,000 50%

5,000 50%

f. No class of shares have been allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way of
bonus shares orbought back during the period offive years immediately preceding the balance sheetdate.
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15. Other equity

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening balance

(♦) Net profit for the year
Closingbalance (A)

Other comprehensive Income
Opening balance

Add: othercomprehensive income for the year
Closing balance (B)

Total other equity (A*^B)

16. Borrowings

Term Loan, unsecured

Loansfrom banks (Refer note i)
Loans fromfinancial institutions(Refer note i)
Less: interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Net amount

Term Loan, unsecured

Loans from banks (Refer note i)
Loans fromfinancial institutions(Refer note i)
Less: Amount disclosed under the head "othercurrent financial liabilities" (Refer note20)
Net amount

Notes:

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

4,588.26 3,984.24

777.97 604.02

5,366.23 4,588.26

5.31 2.81

(0.38) 2.50

4.93 5.31

5,371.16 4,593.57

Non-current portion

As at As at

March 31, 2019 Atarch 31, 2018

. 0.14

- 8.69

• (0.75)

8.08

Current portion

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

.

10.67

8.58 37.07

(8.58) (47.74)

- -

1. Company has taken working capital term loans from a bank/financials Institutions. DeUils of interest rate, tenure and repayment of the said
loan are as follows;

For amount outstanding as at March 31. 2019

Name of financial institutions

Capital First Limited

Name of bank

Ratnakar Bank Limited

Name of financial institutions

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Capital First Limited

IIFL

Loan taken Rate of Tenure Date of first EMi
Rs. In lacs Interest

40.00 18.50* 36Atonths 05-0ct-16

Loan taken Rate of Tenure Date of first EMI

Rs. In lacs Interest

35.00 19.00* 36 Months

Loan taken Rate of

Rs. In lacs Interest

Tenure

05-Jan-16

Date of first EAAI

30.00 18.50% 36Atonths 05-Mar-16

40.00 18.50% 36 Months 05-Oct-16

35.00 19.50% 24 Months 03-Nov-16

<;ti)an^noont,iogtp;.ps. 8.28 Lacs (March 31,2018: Rs. 34.38 lacs) have been guaranteed by the directors of the company,

'--HlV'l

EMJ

Rs. In lacs

1.46

EMI

Rs. In lacs

1.28

EMI

Rs. In lacs

1.09

1.46

1.77
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17. Long term provisions

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 38)
Gratuity

Leave encashment

As at

March 31. 2019
As at

March 31. 2018

25.67

36.07

16.78

31.23

61.74 48.01

Current borrowii^

Unsecured

As at

March 31. 2019

As at

March 31, 2018

Loans repayable on demand from related parties(Refer note i)
- 45.07

• 45.07

Notes:

i. Unsecured loans from related parties represent loans taken from fellow subsidiary.
if. Loan taken from fellow subsidiary carries aninterest rate of12.50* p.apayable on maturity. The entire loan has been repaid by December

31, 2018 along vdth all interest due thereon,

fii. For explanation ontheCompany liquidity risk management process (Refer note41).

19. Trade payables

Trade payable

• to micro witerprises and small enterprises (Refer note v)
- to other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Of the above, trade payable towards related parties are as below:

Total trade payable towards related parties (Refer note 39)

Notes:

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31. 2018

81.29

1,515.49 1,774.78

1,596.78 1,774.78

1,000.59 1,106.65

1,000.59 1,106.65

i. Includes acceptance ofRs. Nil (AAarch 31, 2018: Rs. Nil) on account ofletterofcredit facilities utilised by various parties during theyear.
ii. Tradepayables are noninterestbearing andare normally settled in normally settled in normal tradecycle,
hi. Forexplanation on the Company liquidity riskmanagement process (Refernote 41)
iv. For terms and conditionswith related parties (Refer note 39)
V. Forthe purposeof disclosure under clause 22of chapter Vof MSMED Act2006(Refer note 36)

20. Other current financial liabilities

Current maturities of noncurrent borrowings (Refer note 16)
interest accrued but not due on borrovrings
other payabie:-

Payable for property, plant and equipment
• to others

Employee related payables

Notes:

t. ForexfgaM^n on the Company liquidity risk management process(Refer note 41)

As at

March 31. 2019
As at

March 31. 2018

8.58 47.74

0.11 1.97

. 0.24

91.96 59.17

100.65 109.12
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21. Other current liabilities

Statutory dues payable

Advance from customers

Contract Liabilities arising out of unearned revenue (Refer note24 (v))
RefundLiability created against right to return (Refer note 24 (iv))

As at

March 31, 2019
As at

March 31, 2018

21.16

17.61

94.77

54.42

2.18

133.54 56.60

22. Short term provisions

As at

March 31, 2019
As at

March 31, 2018
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 38)

Gratuity

Leave encashment
0.44

0.55

0.28

0.47

0.99 0.75

23. Current tax liabilities (net)

Provisionfor Income tax (net of advance tax & tax deducted at source of Rs. 6S1.03 lacs
(MarchJli^S: Rs. 400.15 lacs))

As at

March 31, 2019
As at

March 31, 2018

324.40
205.60

324.40 205.60

NEW
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24. Revenue from operations

Revenue from operations
Sale of books andstudy material (Refer note i, If, III &fv)
Incomefrom advertisementservices (Refernote v)

Other operating Revenue

Content development andmaintenance fees(Refer noteIII)

Total

Note

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

2,168.22 2,423.70

2,102.75 1,369.53

4,270.97 3,793.23

276.00 240.00

276.00 240.00

4,546.97 4,033.23

I. The Company isengaged In publishing ofeducational content and books which aresubject tonil rate ofGST,
II. The revenue from sale of books are net off rebate and discounts.
HI. It Includesrevenue fromRelated Party (Refer note 39).

Iv. Reconclllalon of revenue recognised vrlth contracted price Is as follows;-

Contracted Price

Reduction towardsvariableconsideration components*
•on account of volume discount

•on account of returns

Revenue Recognised during the year

Year ended

March 31, 2019

3,278.69

(53.15)

(1,057.32)

2,168.22

•Reduction towards variable consideration components on account of returns Includes Rs. 94.77 lacs towards expected returns against which refund
liability has been created. (Refer note 21) The cost component of expected returns has been shown as right to return assets under inventory.

V. Chances In contract llabllHes are as follows:-

Balance at the beginning of the year

Revenuerecognised that was deducted fromtrade receivables as unearned revenue balance at the
beginning of the year

Increase due to Invoicing during the year,excluding
Balance at the end of the year

The transaction price allocated totheremalnir^ performance obligations (unsatisfied orpartially unsatisfied)

Within one year

More than one year

25. Other Income

Year ended

March 31. 2019

35.57

(35.57)

17.61

17.61

Year ended

March 31 , 2019

17.61

Year ended Year ended

Atarch 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Interest Incomeon fixed deposits 3.00 1.96
Liabilities no longer required written back 23.30 7.44
Subscription income

41.36
Scrap Sales 17.66
Miscellaneous Income 6.93 0.08

50.89 50.84

Cost of materials consumed

A. Raw material consumed

Year ended Year ended

AAarch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Inventory at the beginning of the year 35.09 41.65
Add: Purrdiasesduring the year (Refer note 1) 569.19 656.18

604.28 697.83
Less: Impact of right to retun assets (Refer note H) 50.23 .

Less: Inventoryat the end of the year 19.61 35.09
Sub-total (A) 534.44 662.74

N



CL Acedia Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Allamounts are RupeesIn lacsunless otherwise stated)
B. Cost of materials consumed

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Ptlntfrrg cost

627.49 454.74
Binding and cover pasting charges

8.64 16.61
Packing material consumed .

0.66
Content editing and t^ng charges 2.04 3.92
Sub-total (8) 638.17 475.93

ToUl (A«B) 1,172.61 1,138.67

Notes:

Details of purchases are as follows:

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Paper 567.10 653.96
Lamination material

2.09 2.23

569.19 656.18

Right to return assets indicates thecost component ofexpected returns recognised. (Refer note 24(fv))

. Changesin Inventoriesof finishedgoodsand work-inprogress

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Inventories at the beginnir^ of the year
-Finished goods 1.56 0.91
•Work-in-progress

. 73.13

1.56 74.04
Less: Inventories at the end of the year
-Finished goods

1.49 1.56
-Work-in-progress

6.69

8.18 1.56
Net decrease/(lncrease)

(6.62) 72.48

. Employee Benefit Expenses

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 Atarch 31,2018
Salary, wages, bonus and other benefits

642.47 708.38
Leaveencashment expense (Refernote 38)

8.16 4.98
Gratuity expense (Refer note 38) 9.30 9.22
Contribution to provident and other funds(Refernote 38)

24.63 25.16
Staff welfare expenses

6.82 1.76

691.38 749.50

Finance cost

Year ended Year ended

AAarch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

5.61 20.47
Interest expense:

• on short term borrowingsfrom related parties 4.24 16.75
- on delay in payment of income tax

3.31 3.81
• on delay in payment of statutory dues

0.22 0.03
Other borrowingcosts

6.65

13.38 47.71

^1 U- ,



CL Media Private Limited

Notes to the financial statementsfor the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amountsare Rupees in lacsunless otherwisestated)

30. Depredation and amortisation expenses

Depredation of tangible assets (Refernote 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 4)

31. Other expenses

Freight and cartage outward
Retainership fee
Legal and professional chai^es(Refernote i)
Rates and Taxes

Equipment rentals and other hire charges
Travelling and conveyance expenses
Marketing research expenses

Repairs:

Machinery

Others

Office administration expenses
Advertisement support services
Content development cost

Lease rent charges (Refer note 35)
Business promotion expenses

Communication expenses
Insurance expenses

Bad debts written off

Provisionfor expected credit loss (Refer note 41)
Donation

CSRExpense

Commission to non -executive director

Advances written off

Miscellaneous expenses

Year ended Year ended

/March 31,2019 AUirch 31, 2018

4.12 2.94

23.81 21.69

27.93 24.63

Year ended Year ended

March 31. 2019 March 31, 2018

22.92 20.59

47.41 16.09

12.50 10.18

0.44 2.28

0.27 1.87

39.97 47.16

17.12 14.76

0.05 0.81

0.80 2.87

36.59 32.40

973.21 526.27

- 0.77

13.98 67.86

204.07 259.55

1.70 0.10

4.39 2.29

104.80 76.67

38.20 124.31

5.05 .

38.26 •

- 5.07

2.91 .

18.91 18.84

1,583.55 1,230.74

Notes:

1. Remuneration to Auditor (exduding taxes)

Statutory Audit

Special Purpose Audit Fee

Out of Pocket Expenses

Year ended

March 31, 2019
Year ended

March 31, 2018

4.50

1.75

0.41

5.50

0.50

6.66 6.00

32. Disclosureas oer ind AS .13 on 'Earnings per Share'

Year ended

March 31, 2019
Year ended

March 31. 2018
Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic ft Diluted earnings per share (Refer note i &ii) 7,780.13 6,040.23

Nominal value per share 10.00 10.00

i. Profit attributable to equity shareholders

Profit for the year 778.01 604.02

Profit attributable to equity shareholders 778.01 604.02

ii. Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Opening balance of issued equity shares

Effect of shares issued during the year, if any
10,000 10,000

Weighted averse number of equity shares for Basic and Diluted EPS 10,000 10,000

At prese(it,~it^^^brnpany does not have any dilutive potential equity share.

/ * V-* \



CL Media Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the yearendedMarch 31, 2019
(All amounts are Rupees inlacs unless otherwise stated)

33. Contingent liabilities

There areno contingent liabilities asat March 31. 2019; (March 31, 2018Rs. Nil).

34. Commitments

There are no apitalorother material commitments asatMarch 31, 2019 ; (March 31, 2018 Rs. Nil).

35. Leases

The Company Ua lessee under operating lease of two premises. The lease terms of premises range from 1to 2years and accordingly are short term leases. The
Company has notexecuted any non-cancellable operating leases.

Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
Leaseexpense- Minimum Lease Payments

36. Disclosure relating tosuppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006:

The principal amount and theinterest due thereon remaining unpaid to any AlSME supplier asat the
end of each accounting year incUjded in-

Prindpal amountdue to microand smallenterprises
Interest due on above

The amount ofInterest paid by thebuyer interms ofsection 16 oftheMSMED ACT 2C06 along with
the amounts ofthe payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
year

The amounts ofthe payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond theappointed day during
each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the yearof delay In making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointment day during the year) but without adding the Interest specified
under the MSAAED Act, 2006.

The amount ofinterest accrued andremaining unpaid at the endof each accounting year.
The amount of further Interest remaining dueand payable even in the succeeding years, until sucli
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise forthe purpose of
disallowance as a deductible under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.

p

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 Atarch 31, 2018

13.98 67.86

13.98 67.86

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

81.29



CL AAedia Private Limited

Notes to the financial sUtements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Altamounts are Rupeesin lacs unless otherwise stated)

37. Segment reporting

A. Basis for Segmentation
An operating segment is a component that engages in btsiness activities from which it may earn revemjes and incur estpenses, including revenues and expenses that
relate to transactions with any of the other components, and for whichdiscrete financial information is available.

The board ofdirectors have been identified asthe Chief Operating Decision Maker fCOOM), since they are responsible for all major decision w.r.t. the preparation
and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, expansion, alliance, joint venture, merger and acquisition, and expansion of any facility.

The following summary describes theoperations ineach of the Group's reportable segments:
Reportable segments
a) Publishing of books
b) AAedia related services

The Company's board reviews the results of each segment on a quarterly basis. The company's board ofdirectors uses Eamlr^ Before Interest, Tax and Depreciation
('EBITDA') to assessthe performance of the operatingsegments.

B. Information about reportable segments
Information related to each reportable segment Is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit (before tax), as included in the internal
management reports that are reviewed bythe board ofdirectors. Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information isthe
most relevant in evaluating the results ofcertain segments relative toother entities that operate within these industries. Inter-segment pricing isdetermined on an
arm's length basis.

Year ended March 31. 2019

Reportable Segments
Particulars Publishing of

books

Media related

services

Total

Segment Revenue

external revenue

Inter-segment revenue
2,444.22 2,102.75 4,546.97

Total Segment Revenue 2.444.22 2,102.75 4,546.97

Segment profit/(loss) before income tax
Depreciation and amortisation

813.28

25.06

441.20 1,254.48

25.06

788.22 441.20 1,229.42

Segment assets

Segment assets include:
5.204.83 1,565.90 6,770.73

Capital expenditure during the year 17.08
• 17.08

Segment liabilities 712.63 1,152.24 1,864.87

Year ended Mairh 31. 2018

Reportable Sesments
Particulars Publishing of

books

AAedia related

services

Total

Segment Revenue

External revenue

Inter-segment revenue
2,543.70 1,489.53 4,033.23

Total Segment Revenue 2,543.70 1,489.53 4,033.23

Segment profit/(lo5s) before income tax
Depreciation and amortisation

875.03

22.59

137.46 1,012.49

22.59

852.44 137.46 989.90

Segment assets

Segment assets indude:
4,729.01 1,284.08 6,013.10

Capital expenditure during the year 1.13 17.50 18.63

Segment liabilities 566.83 1,269.31 1,836.14



CL Media Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
amounts are ffupees in lacs unless otherwise stated)

C. Reconciliations of information on reportable segments

i. Revenues

Total revenue for reportable segments
Revenue

ii. Profit before tax

Total profit before tax for reportable se^nents

Unallocated amounts:

Corporate expenses
interest revenue

Other income

Interest expense
Profit from continuing operation before tax

iii. Assets

Total assets for reportable segments

Unallocated amounts

Total assets

iv. Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments
Unallocated amounts

Total liabilities

V. Other material Kerns

Year ended March 31, 2019

interest revenue

Interest expense
Capital expenditure durii^ the year
Depreciation and amortisation expense

Year ended March 31. 2018

Interest revenue

Interest expense

Capital expenditure during the year
Depreciation and amortisation expense

vi. Information about geo^aphical areas

Company operates under single geographic location, there are no separate r^wrtable geogra[^tcal segments.

vii. Information about major customers (from external customers)

The Company derives revenues from the following customers vdtich amount to 10 per cent or more of an entity's revenues:

Customer

CL Educate Limited

G.K^Pubtfeatidns Private Limited

UtLHi

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

4,546.97 4,033.23

4,546,97 4,033.23

1,229.42 1,012.49

(151.30) (195.29)
3.00 1.96

47.89 48.88

(13.38) (47.71)

1,115.63 820.33

6,770.73 6,013.10

819.53 829.48

7,590.26 6,842.58

1,864.87 1,836.14

353.23 411.88

2,218.10 2,248.02

Reportable Others Total

segment total

. 3.00 3.00

• 13.38 13.38

17.08 15.01 32.09

25.06 2.87 27.93

Reportable Others ToUi

segment total

. 1.96 1.96

- 47.71 47.71

18.63 18.63

22.59 2.04 24.63

Year ended

March 31. 2019

onv^.

1,506.44

1,275.70

Year ended

March 31, 2018

1,245.68

1,416.23



CL Media Private Limited

Notesto the financial statements for the year ended March31, 2019
(AU amountsare Rupees in iocsunlessotherwisestated)

38. Employee benefits

The Company contributes to the following post-«nployment defined benefit plans In India.

A. Defined contribution plans:
The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, In respect of qualffylr^ employees towards provident fund and EDU,
which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the sUtement
of profit and loss as they accrue.

Contribution to provident fund (Refer note 28)

Year ended

March 31. 2019

23.89

Year ended

March 31, 2018

23.94

B. Defined benefit plan:
Gratuity
The Company operates a post-employment defined benefit plan for Gratuity. This plan entitles an employee to receive half month's salary for each year of completed
service at the time ofretlrenwit/exit. The Company contributes toa trust setup by the Company which further contributes toa policy taken from the Life Insurance
Corporation of India.

The present value of obligation Is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognize each period of service as glvlr^
rise to additional employee benefit entitlenwnt and measures each unit separately to build up thefinal obligation.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined berteflt obligation forgratuity were carried outasat 31st March 2019. The
present value ofthedefined benefit obligations and therelated current service cost and past service cost, were measured using theProjected Unit Credit Method.

A.The following table set out the status of the deflrredbenefit oblation

Net defined benefit llabillty

Liability for Gratuity

Total employee benefit liabilities

Non-current

Current

As at As at

March 31, 2019 31 March 2018

26.11 17.06

26.11 17.06

25.67

0.44

16.78

0.28

B. Reconciliationof the net defined benefit liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from theopening balances totheclosing balances for netdefined benefit (asset) liability and Its components:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Included In profit or loss

Adjustment acquisition Out

Adjustmmt acquisition In
Current service cost

Interest cost (Income)

Included In OCI

Remeasurements loss (gain)
- Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
• financial assumptions
• experience adjustment

Return on plan assets excluding
Interest Income

Other

Contributions paid by the employer
Benefits paid

Balance at the end of the year

Expenses recognised In the Statement of profit and loss

^eb 1nt6i«^t Cost

* ivt

Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended Atorch 31, 2018

Defined benefit

obligation
Fair value of plan

assets

Net defined

berrefit

(asset)/ liability

Defined berteflt

obligation
Fair value of plan

assets

Net defined

benefit

(asset)/ liability
29.61 12.55 17.06 24.67 12.73 11.94

(0.27)

0.57

- (0.27)
0.57

• •
•

7.97

2.31 .

7.97

2.31

8.30

1.90

- 8.30

1.90

10.58 - 10.58 10.20 - 10.20

0.59

(0.16)
0.59

(0.16)

(0.43)

(3.11)
(0.43)

(3.11)
• 0.65 (0.65) 0.54 (0.54)

0.43 0.65 (0.22) (3.54) 0.54 (4.08)

(4.14)

1.30

(4.14)

(1-30)
(1.72)

1.00

(1.72)

(1.00)

(4.14) (2.86) (1.30) (1.72) (0.72) (1.00)
36.46 10.35 26.11 29.61 12.55 17.06

Year ended Year ertded

AAarch 31. 2019 March 31, 2018

7.97 8.30

1.33 0.92

9.30 9.22



CL Media Private Limited

Notesto the financtal statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(AU amountsare Rupees in lacsunlessotherwise stated)
C. Plan assets

Planassets comprisesof the following:

Funds managed by Insurer ,0.35 "iOOX ills
On an annual basis, an asset-llabUfty matching sUxJy Is done by the Company whereby the Company contributes the net increase In the actuarial liability to the olan
manager In order to manage the liability risk.

As at

March 31, 2019
% of Plan assets As at

Alarch 31, 2018
X of Plan assets

0. Actuarial assumptions,
a) Economic assumptions
The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate Is based upon the martet yields available on government bonds at the
accounting date with a term thatmatches thatofliabilities. Salary increase ratetakes Into account ofinflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on
long term basis. VaUiatlon aaumptlons areasfollows which have been selected by thecompany.

Discount rate

Expected rate of future salary Increase

As at

March 31, 2019

7.66X

B.OOX

As at

March 31, 2018

7.80%

8.00%

The discount rate has been assumed atMarch 31. 2019: 7.66% (March 31, 2018: 7.80%) which Is determined by reference tomarket yield at the balance sheet date on
government securities. The estimates offuture salary Increases, considered In actuarial valuation, take account ofInflation, seniority, promotion and oUrer relevant
factors, suchas supplyand demandIn the employmentmarket.

b) Demographic assumptions

f) Retirement age (years)
II)Mortalityrates Inclusive of provisionfor disability
III) >^e$

Upto 30 years

From 31 to 44 years

Above 44 years

As at

March 31. 2019

66 M

100%of lAlM (2006-08)

Withdrawal rate (%) Withdrawal rate

(X)
3.00% 3.00%

2.00% 2.00%

1.00% 1.00%

E. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible chai^ at the reporting date to oneofthe relevant actuarial assumptions, holding otherassumptions constant, would have

As at

March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2019 As at Aterch 31, 2018

Discount rate (0.50% movement)
Future salary growth (0.50% movement)

Increase

(2.13)

2.31

Decrease

2.33

(2.14)

Increase

(1.94)

2.11

Decrease

2.13

(1.94)

Although theanalysis does not take account ofthefull distribution ofcash flows expected under theplan. Itdoes provide anapproximation ofthesensitivity ofthe
assumptions shown.

Sensitivities due to mortality andwithdrawals are not material and hence Impact of change notcalculated.
Sensitivities astorateofinflation, rateofincrease ofperrsions In payment, rateofIncrease ofpensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable
being a^(i)mpsum benefit on retirement.

Hi

. • .,



CL Media Private Limited

Notesto the flrtancial statements for the year ended March31, 2019
(Allamounts are Rupeesin lacs unless otherwise stated)

Description of Risk E^QKSures:
Valuations arebased oncertain assumptions, which aredynamic In nature and vary over time. As such company isexposed tovarious risks asfollow -
A> Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan's liability. Increase insalary Increase rateassumption infuture valuations will also increase the
liability.

B) Investment Risk - IfPlan isfunded then assets liabilities mismatch &actual Investment return on assets lower than thediscwjnt rateassumed at thelast valuation
date can Impact the liability.

C) Discount Rate: Reduction indiscount rateIn subsequent valuations can increase theplan's liability.

D) Mortality &disability - Actual deaths 6 disability cases proving lower orhigher than assumed In thevaluation can Impact theliabilities.

E) Withdrawals - Actual vrithdrawals proving higher orlower than assumed withdrawals and change ofwithdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan's
liahilitv.

F. Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans In future years
Particulars

Duration of defined benefit oblation
Less than 1 year

Betvreen 1-2 years
Between 2-5 years
Over 5 years

Total

As at As at

Atarch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

0.44

0.46

2.14

33.42

36.46

0.28

0.35

1.76

27.22

29.61

Expected contributions topost-employment benefit plans fwtheyear ending Aterch 31, 2019 areRs. 12.34 lacsfMarch 31, 2018 areRs. 11.35 lacs).
The weighted average duration ofthe defined benefit plan obligation atyear ending March 31, 20191s 18.57 years (March 31, 2018: 18.78 years).

(II) Other long-term employee benefits:

The company provides for compensated absences to itsemployees. The employees can carry-forward a portion oftheunutilised accrued compensated absences and
utilise it In futtre service year or receive cash compensation on termination ofemployment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve
months after theend oftheyear In which theemployees render therelated service and arealso not expected to beutilized wholly within twelve months after the
end of such year, the benefit Is classified as a long-term employee benefit. During the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has incurred an expense on
compensated absences amounting toRs. 8.16 lacs (March 31, 2018: Rs. 4.98 lacs). The Company determines theexpense for compensated abserKes basis theactuarial
valuation of planassetsandthe presentvalueof the obligation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

A.The followlrtg table set out the status of the defined benefit obligation

Net defined benefit liability

Liability for Leave encashment

Total employee benefit liabilities

Current,

Npn-cuiTep^;,-'̂ .

\M''
ht '

As at As at

March 31, 2019 31 March 2018

36.62 31.70

36.62 31.70

0.55 0.47

36.07 31.23



CL Media Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ertded March 31, 2019
(All amounts are Rupees In lacs unless otherwise stated)

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability
Thefollowing table shows a reconciliation from theopenlr^ balances to the closing balances fornetdefined benefit (asset) liability andItscomponents:

Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018
Defined berwfit Fair value of plan Net defir>ed Defined benefit Fair value of plan Net defined

(^ligatlon assets benefit

(asset)/ liability
obligation assets benefit

(asset)/ liability
Balance at the beginning of the year 31.TO • 31.70 27.89 . 27.89
Included In profit or loss .

Acquisition adjustment Out (0.18) (0.18) .

Acquisition adjustment In 0.31 0.31 .

Current service cost 7.74 7.74 9.35 9.^
Interest cost (Income) 2.47 2.47 2.15 2.15

10.34 10.34 11.50 11.50
Included In OCI

Remeasurements loss (gain)
- Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
• financial assumptions

• experience adjustment
0.44

(2.49)

- 0.44

(2.49)
(0.35)
(6.17)

• (0.35)

(6.17)
Returnon plan assets excUidlt^
Interest Income

•
-

(2.05) • (2.05) (6-52) . (6.52)
Other

Contributions paid by the emfRoyer .

Benefits paid (3.37) - (3.37) (1.17) . (1.17)
(3.37) - (3.37) (1.17) . (1.17)

Balance at the end of the year 36.62
• 36.62 31.70

- 31.70

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

7.74 9.35

2.47 2.15

(2.05) (6.52)
8.16 4.98

Expenses recognised In the Statement of profit and loss

Service cost

Net Interest cost

Actuarial (galn)/loss

C. Actuarial assumptions

a) Economic assumptions

The principal assumptions arethediscount rateand salary growth rate. The discount rateIs based upon themarket yields available ongovernment bonds at the
accounting datewith a termthat matches that of liabilities. Salary Increase rate takes Into account ofInflation, seniority, promotion andotherrelevant factors on
long termbasis. Valuation aaumptlons areas follows which have beenselected bythecompany.

Discount rate

Expected rate of future salary Increase

As at

March 31, 2019

7.66X

8.00X

As at

March 31, 2018

7.80X

8.00%

The discount ratehas been assumed at Alarch 31, 2019: 7.66% (March 31, 2018: 7.80%) which isdetermined by reference to market yield at thebalance sheet dateon
government securities. Theestimates of future salary Increases, considered Inactuarial valuation, takeaccount ofInflation, seniority, pronwtlon andotherrelevant
^ctor^'|UclV« supply and demand In theemployment market.



CL Media Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts are Rupees fn lacs unless otherwise stated)

b) Demographic assumptions

i) Retirement age (years)

ii) Mortality rates inclusfveof provision for disability
iii) Ages

Upto 30 years
From 31 to 44 years

Above 44 years

As at

March 31, 2019
As at

March 31, 2018

58 58

100%of lALM (2006-08)
Withdrawal rate (X) Withdrawal rate

3.00X

2.00X

1.00X

(*)
3.00X

2.00X

1.00X

E. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarialassumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have

AsatAtarch 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Discount rate (0.50Xmovement)
Future salary growth (0.50X movement)

Increase Decrease IrKrease Decrease

(1.54)

1.64

1.65

(1.54)

(1.51)
1.61

1.62

(1.52)

Although theanalysis does not take account ofthefull distribution ofcash flows expected under theplan, it does provide anapproximation ofthesensitivity ofthe
assumptions shown.

Sensitivities due to mortality andwithdrawals are not material and henceimpact of change not calculated.
Sensitivities astorate ofinflation, rateofincrease ofpensions In payment, rate ofincrease ofpensions before retirement and life expectancy arenot applicable
being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

Description of Risk Exposures:
Valuations are based oncertain assumptions, whkhare dynamic innature and vary overtime. As such company isexposed to various risks as follow -
A) Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan'sliability. Increase Insalary Increase rate assumption in futurevaluations will alsoIncrease the
liability.

B) Investment Risk • IfPlan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch 6 actualinvestment returnonassetslower than the discount rate assumed at the lastvaluation
date can impact the liability.

C)Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can Increase the plan'sliability.

D) Atortality 6 disability • Actual deaths &disability cases provir® lower or higher than assumed inthe vaUatlon canimpact the liabilities.

E) Withdrawals - Actual withdrawals proving higher orlower than assumed withdrawals and change ofwithdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan's
liability.

F. Expected maturity analysisof the defined benefit plans in future years
Particulars

Duration of defined benefit obligation
Less than 1 year
Between 1-2 years

Between 2-5 years
Over 5 years

Total

As at

March 31, 2019

0.55

0.63

2.22

33.22

36.62

Expectedawtributions to post-employment benefit plans forthe year ending March 31,2019 is Rs. 11.98 lacs( March 31,2018: Rs. 12.40 lacs).
The wei^Ked-average duration ofthedefined benefit plan obligation at theend ofthe reporting year is18.57 years (March 31, 2018:18.78 years).

\\' V

As at

March 31, 2018

0.47

0.53

1.81

28.89

31.70
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39. Related Party Disclosure

in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on Related Party Disclosures, the names of the related parties where control exists and/or with whom transactions
have taken placeduringthe year and descriptionof relationships, as Identified artdcertified bythe management are:

(a) List of related parties

(I) Related parties where control exists:

Relationship Name of related party Ownership Control
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Holding Company CL Educate Limited 100% 100%

(ii) Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place:

Relationship Name of related party

Fellow subsidiaries 1. Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited, India

2. G.K. Publications Private Limited, India

3. Career Launcher Education, Infrastructure and Services Limited

4. Accendere Knowledge Management Services Private Limited

5. ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited

Enterprises In which key management personnel and their relatives
are able to exercise significant influence

1. Career Launcher Education Foundation, India

2. CL Media Employee Gratuity Trust

Key Management Personnel 1. Mr. Satya Narayanan Ramakrishnan (Non-Executive Director & Shareholder)
2. Mr. Gautam Purl (Non-Executive Director)

3. Mr. NikhilMahajan (Non-Executive Director & Shareholder)
4. Mr. Shiva Kumar Ramachandran (Whole Time Director)

Relative of KeyManagement Personnel 1. Mr. R Sreenivasan (Brother of Mr. Satya Narayanan Ramakrishnan)

(b) Details of related party transactions are as below:

Particulars

Year ended Year ertded

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

i. Revenue from ooerations

a. Sale of books and study material (Cross of returns)
• CL Educate Limited

• G.K Publications Private Limited

• iC£ Gate Educational Institute Pvt. Ltd.

b. Sale return & discounts

• G.K Publications Private Limited

c. Content development and maintenance fee
• CL Educate Limited

d. Advertisement Income

- Kestorte Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited
- CL Educate Limited

2. Other Income

a. MIsceliarreous Income

- ICE Gate Educational Institute Pvt. Ltd.

3. Cost of services

a. Advertising suppwt 6 Infra services
• CL Educate Limited

- Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited

b. Professional Expenses

- Accendere Knowledge Management Services Pvt. Ltd.

4. Lease Rent

- CL Educate Limited

5. Employee cost

- CL Educate Limited

^ - Kestone Mb^rated Marketing Services Private Limited

?nv£,^.

1,052.66

2,220.90

11.29

945.20

276.00

323.80

177.78

1.33

103.21

25.86

316.49

13.98

63.23

1,005.68

2,123.29

707.06

240.00

174.32

277.60

60.00

123.99

17.50



CL Media Prfvate Limited
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7. Interest on borrowlnas

• Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited
• CL Educate Limited

8. Reimbtfsement of expense incurred on behalf of Comoanv

• CL Educate Limited

9. Relmbursenwnt of expense Incurred bv Company on behalf of related parties

• CL Educate Limited

• Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited

10. Borrowings repaid

- CL Educate Limited

• Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited

11. Conversion of interest expense Into borrowings

• CL Educate Limited

12. Interest income on gratuity fund

- CLAtedta Employee Gratuity Trust

13. Commission to non-executive Directors

14. Amount Paid bv other on behalf of us

- CL Educate Limited

15. Remuneration paid to Kev Management Personrrel & their relative

• Mr. Shiva Kumar Ramachandran

- Mr. R. Sreenivasan

16. Sale of Fixed Assets

- CL Educate Limited

(c) Balance outstanding with or from related patties as:

Amounts Receivable

Trade receivable

- CL Educate Limited

- G.K. Publications Private Limited

- Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited
- Accendere Krtowledge Martagement Services Pvt. Ltd.
• ICE Gate Educational Institute Pvt. Ltd.

Amounts Payable

Trade payable

• Career Launcher Education Foundation

• CL Educate Limited

- Accendere Knowledge Management Services Pvt. Ltd.

• Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited

Short term borrowings

• Kestorte Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited

Other current financial liabilities finterest accrued but not duel

• Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited

Other current financial assets

•Career Launcher Education Infrastructure and Services Limited

- CL Educate Limited

Non current flnanrtoi

-^l..MalfaL^^^oyee Gratuity Trust

4.24

239.02

25.11

45.07

0.65

17.62

32.23

30.81

17.50

16.41

0.33

162.63

36.39

23.09

139.93

380.84

0.30

0.54

5.07

35.29

34.02

Year ended As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

1,491.16 1,281.95

3,918.02 3,414.74

. 27.25

• 92.51

6.60

5,415.78 4,816.45

3.92 8.92

740.83 900.56

191.03 176.87

64.81 20.30

1,000.59 1,106.65

•
45.07

•
1.28

6.97 6.97

8.62 22.19

15.59 29.16

10.35 12.55

c>r\V5/
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(d)Terms and conditionsof transactions with the related parties
i. The terms and conditions of the transactions with key management personnel were no n>ore favwable than those available, or which might reasonably be

expected to beavailable, onsimilar transactions to non-key management personnel related entities onanarm'sler^ basis.

ii. All outstanding balances withthese related partiesare priced on an arm's length basis andare to be settled in cash. None of the balances are secured.

Ili. For the year ended March 31, 2019 the Company has not recorded any impairment ofreceivables relating toamounts owed by related party (March 31, 2018: Rs. Nil).
This assessment isundertaken each financial year through examining thefinancial position oftherelated party and themarket in which therelated party operates.

40. Corporate Social Responsibility

The board of directors approved CSR Policy of the Company at its meeting held on 15 February 2015. In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, theCompany was required to spend Rs. 83.47 lacs asonMarch 31, 2019. The company spent ontheexpenditure related to thecorporate social
responsibility aspertheSection 135 oftheAct, read with Schedule VII thereof during theyear ending March 31, 2019 Rs. 38.26 lacs outofRs. 83.47 lacs onprescribed
CSR activities. However, as the policy was approved towards the endof Oie financial year, the Company could not implement the same. Further, in accordance with
theguidance provided bythe Institute ofChartered Accountants of India, noprovision has been recorded inthe books ofaccount towards such unspent expenditure.

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A. Amount required to be spend during the year 17.55 19.42
6. Shortfall amount of previous years 65.92 46.50
C. Total (A«B) 83.47 65.92

D. Amount spent during the year on-

•Construction/acquisition of any asset

-Any other purpose 38.26

Total (D) 38.26 .

Shortfall/fExcess) carried forward to next year (C-D) 45.21 65.92 ,
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41, Fair value measurement and financial Instruments

a Financial Instruments - by category and fair values hierarchy

The following table shows thecarrying amounts and fair value offinancial asseU and financial liabilities, including their levels in thefair value hierarchy.

1 As on March 31, 2019

Particulan Carrylr^ value Fair value measurement using
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost ToUl Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Finar>dal assets

Current

Trade receivables . . 6,584.58 6,584.58 . .

Cash and cash equivalents - - 64.59 64.59 . .

Loans
- . 1.70 1.70 , .

Other financial assets
• - 20.13 20.13

- - •

Total
- - 6.671.00 6,671.00

Financial liabilities

Non-current

Borrowings
- • • - • • •

Current

Borrowings . . . .

Trade payables - . 1,5%.78 1,596.78 . . .

Other current financial liabilities
• • 100.65 100.65

• - -

Total 1,697.43 1,697.43

As on March 31, 2018

Particulars Carrying value Fair value nseasurement usIm

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost ToUl Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
FinarKial assets

Current

Trade receivables . . 5,877.95 5,877.95 . .

Cash smd cash equivalents . . 28.72 28.72 .

Loans . . .

Other financial assets
• - K13 34.13

• - •

Total
• - 5,940.80 5,940.80

Financial liabilities

Non-current

Borrowings
- - 8.08 8.08

• - -

Current

Borrow!r^ . . 45.07 45.07 . .

Trade payables - . 1,774.78 1,774.78 .

Other current financial Utilities
• • 109.12 109.12

- • -

Total ^5===:::;..^
- • 1,937.05 1,937.05

d
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts are Rupees In lacs unless otherwise stated)

Level 1: It includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded In an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3; If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The fair value of financial assets and
liabilities included in Level 3 is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions and dealer quotes of similar instruments.

There are no material borrowings of the Company and also the other borrowings have been contracted at floatingrates of interest. Accordir^ly, the carrying value
of such borrowings (including interest accrued but not due) which approximates fair value.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets and liabilities, approximates the fair values, due to
their short-term nature. Fairvalueof non-currentfinancialassets vrfiich includes bankdeposits(due for maturity after twelve monthsfromthe reportingdate) and
security deposits is similar to the carrying value as there is no significant differences between carrying value and fair value.

Valuation prrocesses

The Management performs the valuations of finemcial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes on a periodic basis, including level 3 fair
values.

b. FirsarKial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

' Credit risk

• Liquidity risk

• Interest rate risk

Risk management framework

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board of
Directors have authorised senior management to establish the processes and ensure control over risks through the mechanism of properly defined framework in
line with the businesses of the company.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risks limits and controls, to
monitor risksand adherence to limits. Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

The Company has policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, other price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and the use of
deriy^^^^,p^^rivative financial instruments. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed on acontinuous basis.

:'|-f
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b. Financial risk management (contlniied)

(i) Credit risk

Themaximum exposure to credit risks Is represented bythe total carrying amount of thesefinancial assetsInthe balance sheet

Particulars

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Other financial assets

As at

March 31, 2019

6,817.35

64.59

1.70

20.13

As at

March 31, 2018

6,072.52

28.72

34.13

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet Its contractual
obligations, and arises principallyfrom the Company's receivables from customers.

The Company's credit risk is primarily to the amount due from customer. The Company maintains a defined credit policy and monitors the
exposures to these credit risks onanongoing basis. Credit risk oncash and cash equivalents is limited asthe Company generally invests indeposits
withscheduled commercial banks withhigh credit ratings assigned bydomestic credit rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to the credit riskat the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Trade receivables are unsecured and are
derived from revenue earned from customers primarily located in India. The Company does monitor the economic environment in which it
operates. TheCompany manges itsCredit riskthrough creditapprovals, establishing credit limits andcontinuously monitoring creditworthiness of
customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

On adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company establishes an
allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respectof trade receivable. The management uses a simplified approach
(i.e. based on lifetime ECL) for the purpose of impairment loss allowance, the company estimates amounts based on the business environment in
vdiich the Company operates, and management considers that the trade receivables are in default (credit impaired) when counterparty fails to
make payments for receivableas per term of sale/service agreements. However the Company based upon historical experience determine an
impairment allowance for loss on receivables.

Majority of trade receivables are fromindividual customers,whichare fragmented. Trade receivablesas at year end Rs. 6,817.35 lacs (31 March
2018: Rs. 6,154.67 lacs)relates to revenuegenerated fromrenderingof servicesand sale of text books Rs. 4,546.97lacs (31 March 2018: Rs.
4,033.23 lacs ). Trade receivables are generally realised within the credit year.

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables are as follows:

Gross carrying amount
Particulars As at As at

Atarch31, 2019 Atarch 31,2018

0-90 days past due 855.04 749.68

91 to 180 days past due 77.55 134.84

181 to 270 days past due 68.70 41.24

271 to 360 days past due 121.42 33.55

361 to 450 days past due 41.95 162.37

451 to 540 days past due 40.68 14.83

541 to 630 days past due 9.78 39.50

631 to 720 days past due 17.22 56.38

AAore than 720 days past due 103.21 23.67

Total 1,335.55 1,256.06

The management considers insignificant credit risk for payments due from related parties amounting Rs. 5,415.78 lacs for the year ended March
31, 2019 (March 31, 2018 Rs. 4,816.45 lacs). This definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity
operates and other macro-economic factors. Further, the Company does not anticipate any material credit risk of any of its other receivables.

The Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due and are not recovered within agreed credit period are still collectible in
full, based on historical payment behavior and extensive analysis of customer credit risk.

Atovement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables:

Particulars

Balance at the beglnnirfg

Impairment loss recognised

Amount writtert off

\Salance at the"end-\

Year ended

AAarch31,20l9

194.57

38.20

232.77

Year ended

March 31, 2018

70.26

124.31

194.57
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b. Financial risk management (continued)

(il) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated vrith Its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash oranother financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, asfaraspossible, thatit will have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation.

The Company believes that its liquidity position, including total cash (including bank deposits under lien and excluding interest accrued but not due) ofRs.
64.59 lacsas at March 31,2019 (March 31, 2018: Rs. 28.71 lacs) and the anticipated future internally generatedfunds from operations will enableit to meet
its future knownobligations in the ordinary course of business.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through anadequate amount
of credit facilities to meet obligations when due. TheCompany's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensurethat it maintains sufficient
reserves ofcashandfunding from group companies to meet its liquidity requirements inthe shortandlong term.

TheCompany's liquidity management process as monitored bymanagement, includes the following:
• Day to dayfunding, managed bymonitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirementscan be met.
• Maintaining rollingforecasts of the Company's liquidity position on the basisof expected cash flows.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities offinancial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross andundiscounted, andincludes
interest accrued but not due on borrowings.

As at March 31, 2019 Carrying amount Contractual cash flows

Less than one year Between one year to
five years

Atore than five

years

Totai

Non current borrowings

Current borrowings - . .

Trade payables 1,596.78 1,596.78 1,596.78

Current maturities of non-current borrowings 8.58 8.58 8.58

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.11 0.11 0.11

Payable for property, plant &equipment
- . .

Employee related payables 91.96 91.96 91.96

Total 1,697.43 1,697.43 - 1,697.43

As at March 31, 2018 Carrying amount Contractual cash flows

Less than one year Between one year to

five years
Atore than five

years

Totai

Non current borrowings 8.08 .

8.28 8.28

Current borrowings 45.07 45.07 - 45.07

Trade payables 1,774.78 1,774.78 . 1,774.78
Current maturities of non-current borrowings 47.74 47.74 - 47.74

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1.97 1.97 - 1.97

Payable for property, plant &equipment 0.24 0.24 . 0.24

Employee related payables 59.17 59.17
• 59.17

Tour 1,937.05 1,928.97 8.28
• 1,937.25
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B. Financial risk marugement (continued)

tit. AAarket risk

Market risk Is the risk that the future cash Aows of a financial Instrument vrlll nuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises two types of risk: currency risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, v^ile optimising the return. Since, the Company does not have any foreign
currency transactions and investments, the currency risk and other price risk is not applicable on the Company.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument vdll fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowirtgs with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash
now interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company's Interest rate risk arises majorly from the term loans from banks carrying floating rate of interest. These obligations
exposes the Cwnpany to cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes as reported to
the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Variable-rate instruments As at

March 31. 2019

As at

March 31, 2018

Term loans from banks (Non current) 8.08

Current maturities of borrowings 8.58 47.74

Current borrowings - 45.07

Total 8.58 100.89

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reportir^ date would have increased (decreased) equity and
profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates,
remain constant.

Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

50 bps

increase

50 bps

decrease

50 bps
increase 50 bps decrease

Interest on term loans from banks

For the year ended March 31, 2019

For the year ended March 31, 2018

(0.16)

(0.56)

0.16

0.56

(0.11)

(0.41)

0.11

0.72

42. Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes Issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company.

Atenagement assesses the Company's capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Company
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, raise new debt or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts divided by total
capital (equity attributable to owners of the parent plus interest-bearing debts).

Particulars As at

March 31, 2019

As at

March 31, 2018

Borrowings

Less : Cash and cash equivalent

8.58

(64.59)

100.89

(28.72)

Adjusted net debt (A)

Total equity (B)

(56.01)

5,372.16

72.17

4,594.57

^kdjusted rret debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) ^ - ^.04% 1.57%

H! l'\\1 'j
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43. Deferred tax asset (net)

A. Amounts recognised In profit or loss

Current tax expense
Year endedYear ended

March 31, 2019

Current year
373.72 248.34

Adjustment for prior years

373.72 248.34
Deferred tax expense

Change In recognised temporary differences (36.10) (32.02)

Total Tax Expense
(36.10) (32.02)
337.62 216.32

B. Amountsrecognised In Other Comprehensive income

Year ernled March 31., 2019 Year ended March 31. 2018

Before tax Tax (Expense)/ Net of tax Before tax Tax (Expense)/ Net of tax
Income Inconw

Remeasurements of defined benefit (0.52) 0.14 (0.38) 3.47 (0.97) 2.50
IIM>ilfty

(0.52) 0.14 (0.38) 3.47 (0.97) 2.50

C. RecondHaMon of effective tax rate

Yev ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018
Rate Amount Rate Amount

Profit before tax 29.1211 1,115.63 27.55* 820.34
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate (A) 324.87 226.02
Tax effect of;

Non-deductible expenses 45.54 1.06

Non-taxable income . .

Tax incentives (0.74) (23.07)
Changes in rates related to prior years

. (0.35)
Prior year errors/adjustment 4.05 12.67
Effect of timing differences recognised (36.10)

Total (B) 12.75 (9.59)

(A)*(B) 337.62 216.32

D. Movement in deferred tax balances

As at Recognized In PBL Recognized in OQ As at

March 31,2018 March 31, 2019
Deferred Tax Assets

Employee benefits 13.57 4.56 0.14 18.27

Other current ftnandal t(at>(llties 4.78 30.12 34.90

Inventories - (14.63) (14.63)
Trade receivables 57.81 9.97 67.78

Sub- Toul (a) 7«.U 30.02 0.14 106.32

Deferred Tax Llablltties

Property, plant and equipment and Intangibles 14.59 (5.93) 8.66

Non current borrowings 0.15 (0.15)
Sub- Total (b) 14.74 (6.08) • 8.66

Net Deferred Tax Liability (b)-(a) (61.42) (36.10) (0.14) (97.67)

Note:E)eferred~t£(^l>alance Includes Rs. 509.77Lacs (March 31, 2018: 509.77 Lacs) of Minimum AlternateTaxcredit entitlement.

/.r
t
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44. SUndards issued but not yet effective

(a) Ind AS-116 Leases

On March 30. 2019. the Min.suy of Corporate Affairs has notified ind AS 116. Leoses. Ind AS 116 wiil replace the existing (eases standard. Ind AS 17. Leases, and
relate mterpreutions. The sUndard sets out the prinaples for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to acontract
I.e. the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires alessee torecognwe assets and liabilities for all leases with an
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is oflow value. Currently, operating (ease expenses are charged tothe SUtement ofProfit &Loss The
standard also contains enhanced disclosure requiremenu for lessee. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The Standard permits two possible methods of transition •
Full Retrospective Approach Under this approach the standard will be applied restrospectively to each poor period presented in accordance with Ind AS -8
AccountingPolicies. Changes in Accounting Fstimates and Errors."

Approach - Under this approach, the Cumulative effectwill be recognized at thedateof initial application of the sundard. The effective
date of adoption of IndAS i16 islinanaal periodbeginson or after April 1, 2019.

The company is proposing touse the the "Modified Retrospective Approach", for transidoning to Ind AS 116. and take the cumulattve adjustment to reUined
earnings on the date of initial application (April 1. 2019). Accordingly comparatives for the year ending or ended March 31. 2019 will not be restrospectively
adjusted. The Company isevaluating the requirements ofthe standard and the effect on the finanaal sUtemenU isbeing evaluated.

lb) Amendment to Ind AS19- plan amendment, curtailment or settlement

On March 30, 2019. Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, "Employee benefits", in connection with accounting for plan amendments
curtailments and settlements.

The amendment requires an entity :

• touse updated assumptions todetermine current service cost and netInterest for theremainder ofthe penod after a plan amendment, curtailment or
to recognize in proht orloss as apart ofpast service cost, oragain orloss on settlement, any reduction in surplus, even iftiiat surplus was not previously

recognized because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1. 2019. The Company is currenUy evaluating the effect of this
amendment.

(c) Amendment in ind AS 23-borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that ifany specific borrowing remains outsUnding after the related asset Is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes
part ofthe tunds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capiulisation rate on general borrowings. The Company does not expect any impact from
this amendment.

(d) Ind AS - 12 AppendixC. Uncertainty over Income Tax treatments:
On March 30. 2019. Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C. Uncertainty over income Tax Treatment which is tobe applied while performing
thedetermination oftaxable profit (orloss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused laxcredits and tax rates, when Uiere isuncertainty over income taxtreatments
under Ind AS 12. According toAppendix, companies need todetermine the probability ofthe relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, orgroup oftax
treatments, when determining tax profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credit and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods oftransition- i)Full retrospective approach- Under this approach. Appendix Cwill beapplied retrospectively toeach
prior reporting period presented In accordance with Ind AS 8•Accounting Policies, Change inAccounbng Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and li)
retrospectively with cumulative effectofinitially applying Appendix Crecognized by adjusting equity oninitial application without adjusting comparatives.

The Company will adopt thestandard from April 1. 2019 andhas decided to adjust thecumulative effects inequity onthe dateofinitial application I.e. April 1.
2019 without adjusting comparatives.

Theeffect of adoptionof Ind AS 12 Appendix Cwould be insignificantin the financialsutements.

(e) Amendment to Ind AS 12-income Taxes

On March 30. 2019. Ministry ofCorporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance inInd AS 12, "Income Taxes", inconnection with accounting for dividend
distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies thatanentity shall recognize theincome tax consequences ofdividend inpro/it orloss, other comprehensive income orequity according
to where the entity originally recognized those past transactions or events.

Theeffect of adoptionof this amendment of Ind AS 12 wouldbe insignificantin the financialstatements.

45. The Board of Directors of the Company has approved a scheme of arrangement for amalgamation of the company ("Amalgamating Company") with its parent
company 'CL Educate Limited" CAmalgamated Company") in its meeting held on November 27. 2018. An application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations. 201S was filed with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE") and BSE Limited ("BSE"), for theproposed amalgamation. The scheme will
beeffective upon approval from National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT). Theappointed date as finalized bythe Company isApril 1. 2019.

46, These financial statements were authorizedfor issuebyBoardof Directors on May 29,2019.

47- Previous year'sfigures havebeenregrouped / reclassifted as per the currentyear'spresenutionforthe purpose ofcomparability.

for Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

firm registration NO.J03S23W/W100048

RajKu

Partner

Membership No.
• --C"(

Place; NewDelhii >r[ Nffl/VOELHi
Date: May 29. 201$

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

CL Media Private Limited

Satya Narayanan .R

Director

OiN; 00307326

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29. 2019

Nikhil Mahajan

Directer

OIN: 00033404

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29. 2019


